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appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of 
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NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by 
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should 
also be a senior official of the top-Her holdlng company, In the event 
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objec/ to public release of information regarding that individual. 
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for 
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's 
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information,• 12 C.F.R. Part 261, 
that the Repo~ individual consent to public release of all 
details in t/pa oo~/ng that Individual. 
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Legal Tide of Holding Company 
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Report Item 

Form FR Y-6 

GrandSouth Bancorporatlon, Inc. 
381 Halton Road 

Greenville, South Carolina 29607 
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2017 

1: The BHC does not prepare form 1 OK with the SEC. 
Enclosed are two copies of the company's audited financial statements. 

2a: Organizational Chan 

GrandSouth Bancorporation 
(No LEI) 

Physical Address: 381 Halton Road 
Greenville, SC 29607 

Mailing Address: P. O. Box 6548 
Greenville, SC 29606 

Incorporated in South Carolina 

100% 

GrandSouth Capital Trust 1 

100% 

GrandSouth Bank 
(No LEI) 

381 Halton Road 
Greenville, SC 29607 

Incorporated in South Carolina 

2b: Domestic branches 

Main Office: 381 Halton Road 
Greenville, SC 29607 

Full service branch: 325 South Main Street 
Fountain Inn, SC 29644 

Full service branch: 1601 North Fant Street 
Anderson, SC 29621 

Full service branch: 501 West Wade Hampton Blvd. 
Greer, SC 29650 

Full service branch: 1901 Assembly St 
Columbia, SC 29201 

Full service branch: 1055 St Matthews Rd 
Orangeburg, SC 29115 

(No LEI) 
381 Halton Road 

Greenville, SC 
lncoroorated ln Delaware 



Results: A list of branches for your depository institution: GRANDSOUTH BANK (ID_RSSO: 2728661). 

This depository institution is held by GRANDSOUTH BANCORPORATlON (2929833) of GREENVILLE, SC. 

The data are as of 12/31/2017. Data reflects information that was received and processed through 07/05/2018. 

Reconciliation and Verificatioo Steps 
1. Jn the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below 

2. If required, enter the date in the Effective Date column 

Actions 

OK: If the branch information is correct, enter 'OK' in the Data Action column. 

Change: If the branch information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter 'Change' in the Data Action column and the date when this information first became valid in the Effective Date column. 

Oose: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter 'Close' in the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column. 

Delete: If a branch listed wn never owned by this depository institution, enter ·~ete' in the Data Action column. 

Add: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add' in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column. 

If printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup in MS Excel . Try using landscape orientation, page sealing, and/or leeal sized paper, 

Submission Procedure / 
When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact. See the detailed instructions on this site for more information. 

If you are e-mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line ofthe e-mail. 

Note: 

To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of Change, dose, Delete, or Add. 

The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://y1Donline.federa1reserve.gov. 

"FDIC UNJNUM, Office Number, and JD_RSSD columns are for reference only. Verificatioo of these values is not required 

o ... ..- BloctivoD.ote Brandl Service Type Branch ID_RSsD• Popular N•m~ Street Address c ... State 

0~ Full Service (Head Office) 2728661 GII/\NOSOUTH lWIK l8l HALTON ROAO GRWMLL£ SC 
CHANGE 6/30/2017 Full Service 3678491 ANDfl\SON BRANO< .1601 NORTH FANT STREIT ANDERSON SC 
OK Full Service S040168 COUJMBIA BflANCH 1901 ASSEMBLY SlllEIT. SUITE 100 COLUM&lA SC 
OK Full Service 3281958 rOUNTAlH !NN BRA.NCH 325 SOUTH MAIN STll£IT FOUIITAIN INN SC 
OK Fu.U Service 4932453 GBEER BRANCH 501 WEST WADE HAMPTON BOULEVARD GREER SC 
OK Full..Serv5ce 5044719 ORANGEBURG BRANCH 1055 ST MATTHEWS ROAD ORANGE.BURG SC 

Zip Code 

19607 

29621 
29201 

211544 
296SO 
29115 

County 

GREENVILLE 
A!'40(8SON 
RICHLAND 

GREENVILLE 

GRfENVlllE 
ORANGEBURG 

Countrv FDIC UNINUM• Office Number• Head Office Head Office 10 Rsso• Comments 

UNfTED STATES Not~ir~ Not Reauirrd GAANOSOUTH SANK 2728661 

UNJT£0STATE.I Not~,r~ Not Rtaulred GI\ANOSO\ITH 111\NK 272$661 

UNITtO STAT£S NotR..aulred Not Jlequltttd GflANOSOUTH BANK 272866! 
UNJT£D STATES NotReqult.:d Nol R~u~red GI\AN.OSOVTH BANK 2728661 

UNITED STATES Nut ~c,,,iu;,cij ~J.::. t ~~:.:fr~~ G?.h.NO!OUTI-! !l~~~K 2728661 

UNrTE.O STATES Not Required Not Required GRANDSOUTH BANK 27286vl 



Re~rt Item 3: Securities holders 

Form FRY-6 
GrandSouth Bancorporation. Inc. 

December 31, 2017 

Current Shareholders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with 
power to vote as of 12/31/2017 

Shareholders not listed in (3)(1 )(a) through (3)(1)( c) that had ownership, control 
or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote during the fiscal year ending 
12/31/2017. 

Name 
Mason Y. Garrett 

John B. Garrett 

City, State 
Belton, SC 
United States 
Citizen 

Greenville, SC 
United States 
Citizen 

Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Bank Holding Company 
999,396 - 22.2% Common Stock 
65,040- 1.4% Options on 
Common Stock 

442.885 - 9.8% Common Stock 
28,630 - O.S°k Options on 
Common Stock 

Name 
lthan Creek Master 
Investors (Cayman) 

Percentage of 
Voting Shares In 

City, State Bank Holding Company 
Salt Lake City, UT 416,667-9.3% Common Stock ' 
United States O • 0.0% Options on 

Common Stock 

JCSD Capital, LLC Walnut Creek, CA 296,706 - 6.6°/o Common Stock 

United States o -0.0% Options onCommon Stock 

~ 



~ll\_ C: lna!don 

(1) (2) ())tb} ....... -..... C3JC•J Tltle&Paoldon 
Addt.u 

Occllpallo,, K - Tlllo&""-!tiOft 
- Sub9ldlarlet (CIIJ. SIN, lltenwfth llanll wlllt Ban~ Holding (includenam09 

Coufttry) Holdlng Caonpany ~ cllUbal-) 

Mason y_ Garron NIA Chlllrman&CEO C.ec10I & Cl>ailman 
Pelter, SC Director GiandSo.cnBan1< 

James B. Sel,wiers NIA Preslden4 & coo Ctiel E•eatUve Olb" 
Greenrile. SC Oltactor G<ancl&lud, Bank 

Jot,, B. GarJou NIA Ctiiel Ananclal Olfic01 cn1e1 Fiftandll 0tr1CO< 
Greenvllle,SC DiraclOI GtandSoulh Bank 

Harold E. Gam,n 0-. Go Wlh Garrelt'o Goll CttraclOII Oi'ecl<lr 
Fountain Im. SC ~ arid Sp«:;ally Ve~ GiandSOUlh E1an1< 

Mchae/LG.,lt AeUrod °"""* Director 
Fountain tnn, SC GrandSoulh Bank 

Baal)' 0. Gross. Jr. AJtomey. Bae!)' o Gross, Jt. l)irc,cil)! Direct0< & Secrotary 
Simpsonvlle. SC Actomey al Law GtandSOU1h Bani< 

S. HUiier Howa1d • .k Owner.CEO, The Springs al D~ector, Vic• Chairrmln Direc!Df 
S1mp$onvlffe, SC Si!npsonville. Slmpsonvllle, SC GrandSoulh Bank 

>nt¥Y?y Morgan Vee <;nalrman, ACt Alrs/lOp, cw- Du'act<>< 
E8'1oy. SC Easley. SC GrandSoolh Bank 

J. CeJtOUn Pru111 Attorney, Pfuill & Pni11. Mde<Son, Director Oirector 
Anderson.SC SC GrandSOUtn Ba;ik 

Jot,n Shealy -0-. Capital Conc<e\e 0.etlo< Otc'eetor 
LOl!inglon.SC C0"1)8Jly Grar<lSoulh Bank 

FonnFRV-41 
GramSoolh Bancorpo.ation, Inc. 

December 31. 2017 

13K•I 
Tltto a Position 
wi11101hor 
8u91nestn 
(Include-al 
-butln-•I 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

(4)(a) 
~ol 
Valln9 SharM In 

Bani< Holding Com-
999.396 • 22.2". common S1odc 
65,040. 1.4% Opllons aro 
Cammon Stoel. 

22.764 • 0.5% Common Stock 
280000 • D.6% Option$ on 
Common S1oc:k 

442,885 • 9.BOJ, Conw!lon Slotk 
28.630 • 0.5% Options on 
Common Stock 

owner, Go Wilh Garretl'S Goij cars 173,256 • 3.8% Common Sl(Jo;k 
and Specialty Vohlcles o , D.0% Options aro 

Common Sleek 

Retlrad 69,931 • 1.6% Common Stock 
o , 0.0% OpUons on 
Common Steck 

ARorney, Baety O Gross. Jt, 30,745. o." commons-
AnOlney al ~'" Foontaln Inn, SC O , 0.()'lt, Oplions on 

Commons-

Owner. CEO. Tha Springs at 39,437 • 0.9% Common Sk>llk 
~ Simpsonville, SC o -0.11% 0p11ons on 

Common Slocl< 

Voce Chaorman. ACL Ai!slloP, o - o.~ common Slack 
Eastoy,SC D • 0.0% Oplior'os on 

common Stock 

Altarney. Pr..it & Pfu;Q, Anderson, 5,167 ·0.1%Common Slack 
SC 5,500. 0.1%.0pttons on 

Common SIOCk 

Qwnef, c.tr,ilal Canc,ete Company 1,500 0.0% Cortmon Slack 
o • 0.0% Options on 
Common Stock 

(4Kcl 
uatnalMlol 
alllercamponlN 
Onctuc!e 
portllerlhlpl) 
125%atmareof 

(4Kb) vaUng-•,. 
Perc-goOI hold(Ultna.,.. 
VOiing $1\aNo in olcc,mponlnand 
SUDeldla- por-tageot 
Onclucia"""'" voting -urlU.o 
of aul>lldlarlft) held) 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

NIA Go With Garrott's Goll Cars and 
Specialty Vehicles (100%1 

NIA Upslale tnvems (25%) 

H/A Baely O Gross, Jr .. 
AnorneoJ al Law I 100%1 

NIA Curlis Group {70'4) 
Prolesslonar Buildings (50%) 
Hnward Development corp (50%1 
liilleteSI Cenlre (50%) 
HK Really (SO%) 
Captain Hool! LLP (34%) 
Ocearwlew II t~ 
JJler Hokllngs LLC (34"'1 

~A NIA 

NIA Pruitt & Pruitt , "11omeys {100%) 
McOul~o ~. lnc. 1100%) 
estates at Nortll HamPlon. u.c 150%) 
Asl1 camp Assodales. LLC 12S%.I 
Pl.WM. LLC 11JO'!,) 
24 Properties. LLC (~J 

NIA cai,.a1 Conctete Holding$, Inc. {75%) 
Peak 4. LLC (50%1 



GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 

Report on Consolidated Financial Statements 
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0 elliott davis 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
GrandSouth Bancorporation 
Greenville, South Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GrandSouth Bancorporation and its Subsidiary 
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements 
of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements collectively, the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
GrandSouth Bancorporation and its Subsidiary as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Greenville, South Carolina 
March 20, 2018 



Grandsouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Assets 
Cash and due from banks $ 22,799 $ 34,923 

Interest bearing transaction accounts with other banks 14,290 3,086 

Federal funds sold 4,368 5,309 

Cash and cash equivalents 41,457 43,318 

Certificates of deposit with other banks 13,500 2,500 

Securities available-for-sale 21,440 25,543 

Other investments, at cost 1,271 1,319 

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $7,414 for 2017 and 

$5,158 for 2016 543,980 413,633 

Premises and equipment, net 12,215 10,211 

Bank owned life insurance 6,543 6,390 

Assets acquired in settlement of loans 4,923 4,902 

Interest receivable 4,728 3,755 

Deferred income taxes 1,664 1,530 

Goodwill 737 737 

Other assets 1,275 1,676 

Total assets $ 653,733 $ 515,514 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
Deposits 

Noninterest bearing $ 89,688 $ 69,878 

Interest bearing 480,310 360,449 

Total deposits 569,998 430,327 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 19,000 22,000 

Other borrowings 550 

Junior subordinated debentures 8,247 8,247 

Interest payable 208 111 

Other liabilities 5,097 4,140 

Total liabilities 603,100 464,825 

Commitments and Contingencies - Notes 11 and 14 

Shareholders' equity 
Preferred stock - Series A - no par value; shares issued and 

outstanding - 287,895 1,298 1,298 

Common stock - no par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; shares 

issued and outstanding - 4,502,190 for 2017 and 4,483,990 for 2016 32,650 32,058 

Retained earnings 16,921 17,528 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (236) (195) 

Total shareholders' equity 50,633 50,689 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 653,733 $ 515,514 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Grandsouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Interest income 

Interest and fees on loans 

Investment securities: 

Taxable 

Nontaxable 

Dividends 

Other 

Total interest income 

Interest expense 

Deposits 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

Junior subordinated debt 

Total interest expense 

Net interest income 

Provision for loan losses 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 

Nonlnterest income 

Service charges on deposit accounts 

Gain on sale of securities 

Net gain on sale of premises and equipment 

Increase in value of life insurance assets 

Other 

Total noninterest income 

Noninterest expenses 

Salaries and employee benefits 

Premises and equipment 

(Gain) loss on sale and impairment of assets acquired in settlement of loans 

Data processing 

Insurance 

Printing, postage and supplies 

Professional fees 

Miscellaneous loan expense 

Other operating 

Total noninterest expenses 

Income before income taxes 

Income tax provision 

Net Income 

Deductions for amounts not available to common shareholders: 

Dividends declared or accumulated on preferred stock 

Net income available to common shareholders 

Per common share 

Net income, basic 

Net income, assuming dilution 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands, 

except per share) 

36,073 $ 29,109 

359 371 
114 242 

56 42 

553 178 
37,155 29,942 

4,436 2,174 
238 134 
263 213 

4,937 2,521 
32,218 27,421 

6,089 3,269 
26,129 24,152 

529 441 
10 120 
19 11 

153 164 
172 272 
883 1,008 

15,218 12,905 
1,808 1,441 

205 (325) 
1,248 1,014 

690 438 
449 423 

1,740 1,528 
1,739 1,599 
1,126 1,078 

24,223 20,101 
2,789 5,059 
1,999 1,875 

790 3,184 

(91) (121) 

699 $ 3,063 

0.16 $ 0.69 

0.16 $ 0.66 



Grandsouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Net income 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities available for sale 

Unrealized holding gain (loss) arising during the period 

Tax expense 

Reclassification of realized gain 

Tax expense 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 

Comprehensive income 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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$ 

$ 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

790 $ 3,184 

21 (571) 

(11) 208 
(10) (120) 

3 41 
3 (442) 

793 $ 2,742 



Grandsouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Accumulated 
Shares of other 
common Common Preferred Retained comprehensive 

stock stock stock earnings income (loss) Total 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Balance, December 31, 2015 3,522,645 $ 20,996 $ 5,193 $ 16,310 $ 247 $ 42,746 

Net income 3,184 3,184 

Other comprehensive loss (442) (442) 

Dividends on preferred stock (121) (121) 

Dividends on common stock (1,815) (1,815) 

Redemption of series T-3 preferred stock (3,895) (30) (3,925) 

Issuances of common stock 1,000,000 11,439 11,439 

Redemption of common stock (75,585) (1,000) (1,000) 

Exercise of stock options 36,930 194 194 

Share-based compensation 429 429 

Balance, December 31, 2016 4,483,990 $ 32,058 $ 1,298 $ 17,528 $ (195) $ 50,689 

Net income 790 790 

Other comprehensive income 3 3 

Dividends on preferred stock (91) (91) 

Dividends on common stock (1,350) (1,350) 

Reclassification of income tax effects 

to retained earnings 44 (44) 

Exercise of stock options 18,200 103 103 

Share-based compensation 489 489 

Balance, December 31, 2017 4,502,190 $ 32,650 $ 1,298 $ 16,921 $ (236) $ 50,633 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Grandsouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Operating activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities 

Provision for loan losses 
Writedowns of assets acquired in settlement of loans 
Depreciation 
Securities accretion and premium amortization, net 
Gain on sale and call of available-for-sale securities 
Gain on sale or other disposition of premises and equipment 
Gain on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans 
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance 
Deferred income tax benefit 
Increase in interest receivable 
Increase in interest payable 
Decrease in other assets 
Increase in other liabilities 
Share-based compensation expense 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Investing activities 
Purchases of available-for-sale securities 
Purchases of certificates of deposit 
Maturities and calls of available-for-sale securities 
Paydowns of available-for-sale mortgage-backed securities 
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 
Proceeds from sale of certificates of deposit 
Purchase of other investments 
Proceeds of redemptions of other investments 
Purchases of student loans 
Net increase in loans made to customers 
Purchases of premises and equipment and construction in progress 
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans 

Net cash used for investing activities 

Financing activities 
Net increase in deposits 
Proceeds from other borrowings 
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances 
Proceeds from issuances of common stock 
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock 
Cash dividends paid on common stock 
Redemption of series T-3 preferred stock 
Redemption of common stock 
Exercise of stock options 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information 
Cash paid during the period for: 

Interest 
Income taxes 

Noncash investing and financing activities: 
Transfer of loans to assets acquired in settlement of loans 
Change in unrealized gain or loss on available for sale securities 
Charge offs of loans 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 790 $ 3,184 

6,089 3,269 
288 245 
772 600 
157 62 
(10) (120) 
(19) (11) 
(83) (570) 

(153) (164) 
(142) (7) 
(973) (622) 

97 13 
401 307 
958 1,013 
489 429 

8,661 7,628 

(2,830) (27,531) 
(12,250) (1,000) 

4,860 12,751 
1,937 1,523 

1,966 
1,250 500 
(590) (1,254) 
638 1,211 

20,000 
(157,390) (52,349) 

(2,819) (2,029) 
62 43 

727 1,169 

(146,405) (65,000) 

139,671 80,066 
550 

54,000 28,500 
(57,000) (28,500) 

11,439 
(91) (121) 

{1,350) (1,815) 
(3,925) 
(1,000) 

103 194 

135,883 84,838 

(1,861) 27,466 
43,318 15,852 

$ 41,457 $ 43,318 

$ 4,840 $ 2,508 
1,972 1,892 

954 483 
21 (571) 

(4,295) (2,821) 



GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies 

GrandSouth Bancorporation (the "Company") is a South Carolina corporation organized in 2000 for the purpose 
of being a holding company for GrandSouth Bank (the "Bank"). On October 2, 2000, pursuant to a Plan of Exchange 
approved by the shareholders, all of the outstanding shares of $2.50 par value common stock of the Bank were 
exchanged for shares of no par value common stock of the Company. The Company presently engages in no 
business other than that of owning the Bank, has no employees, and operates as one business segment. The 
Company is regulated by the Federal Reserve Board. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of the Company and the Bank. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in 
consolidation. The GrandSouth Capital Trust 1 (see Note 10) is an unconsolidated subsidiary. 

The Bank was incorporated in 1998 and operates as a South Carolina chartered bank providing full banking services 
to its customers. The Bank is subject to regulation by the South Carolina State Board of Financial Institutions and 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). 

Basis of presentation: 

The accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America and to general practices within the banking industry. The Company uses the accrual basis of accounting. 
In certain instances, amounts reported in prior years' consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to 
conform to the current presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on previously reported shareholders' 
equity or net income. 

Estimates: 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the 
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting 
periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Concentrations of credit risk: 

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes 
primarily in South Carolina. The Company's loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any single borrower or 
in a relatively small number of borrowers; however, 62% of the loan portfolio is secured by real estate. The market 
risk associated with declining real estate values exposes the Company to potential losses in the event of borrower 
default. An additional 14% of the Company's loan portfolio is collateralized by automobiles; this concentration is 
somewhat mitigated by low per-borrower exposure and by the geographical diversity of the borrowers. 
Management is not aware of any other concentrations of loans to classes of borrowers or industries. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Concentrations of credit risk, continued: 

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers, 
industries and geographic regions, management monitors exposure to credit risks that could arise from potential 
concentrations of lending products and practices such as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment 
increases (e.g., principal deferral periods, loans with initial interest-only periods, etc.), and loans with high loan-to­
value ratios. Additionally, there are industry practices that could subject the Company to increased credit risk 
should economic conditions change over the course of a loan's life. For example, the Company makes variable 
rate loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing loans with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.e., balloon 
payment loans). These loans are underwritten and monitored to manage the associated risks. Management has 
determined that there is no concentration of credit risk associated with its lending policies or practices. 

The Company's investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of the United States of America, 
government-sponsored entities and general obligation municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there 
is no concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolio. The Company places its deposits and correspondent 
accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality institutions. Management believes credit risk associated 
with correspondent accounts is not significant. 

Investment securities: 

The Bank's investments in equity and debt securities are classified into one of three categories : 

1. Available-for-sale: Securities that are not classified as either held-to-maturity or as trading securities 
and are reported at fair value, which is determined using quoted market prices. Unrealized gains and 
losses are reported, net of income taxes, as separate components of shareholders' equity 
(accumulated other comprehensive income). Gains or losses on dispositions of securities are based 
on the difference between the net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amounts of the securities sold 
using the specific identification method. Premiums and discounts are amortized into interest income 
by a method that approximates a level yield. 

2. Held-to-maturity: Securities that the Company has the ability and intent to hold until maturity. These 
securities are stated at cost, adjusted for the amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts. 
Premiums and discounts are included in interest income using a method that approximates a level 
yield. The Company has no held-to-maturity securities. 

3. Trading: Securities that are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling in the near future. 
Trading securities are reported at fair value, and related unrealized gains and losses are recognized in 
the income statement. The Company has no trading securities. 

Securities are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment on a quarterly basis or more often if a potential 
loss-triggering event occurs. Impairment is considered to be other-than-temporary if it is more likely than not that 
a security will mature or be sold before its amortized cost can be recovered. In determining if there is evidence of 
credit deterioration, various factors are considered, including the severity of decline in market value below cost, 
the period of time over which the decline in fair value has existed, and the financial condition and near-term 
prospects of the issuer, including any specific events that may influence the operations of the issuer. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Investment securities, continued: 

Investment securities are considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired if it is probable that the issuer will be 
unable to make contractual payments as required or if management believes that the security's value will not 
recover within the estimated recovery period. For debt securities, management also considers the causes of the 
decline in value including changes in the general level of interest rates, as well as industry and issuer-specific 
factors, the issuer's financial condition, its near-term prospects and current ability to make future payments in a 
timely manner, changes in rating agencies' ratings at the evaluation date as compared with such ratings at the 
date of acquisition, and any likely action by such agencies. In addition, for asset-backed securities, the credit 
performance of the underlying collateral, including delinquency rates, cumulative losses to date, and any 
remaining credit enhancements is compared with expected credit losses. Other-than-temporary impairments 
related to credit issues are recognized through earnings. 

Other investments: 

Other investments include the Bank's investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB") in which, as 
a member institution, the Bank is required to own stock. The stock is generally pledged against any borrowings 
from the FHLB. No ready market exists for the stock and it has no quoted market value. However, redemption of 
the stock historically has been at par value. 

Loans and interest income on loans: 

Loans are stated at the principal balance outstanding, increased or reduced by deferred net loan costs or fees. 
The allowance for loan losses is deducted from total loans in the consolidated balance sheets. Loan origination 
and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs (principally salaries and employee benefits) are 
deferred and amortized as an adjustment ofthe related loan's yield. Generally, these amounts are amortized over 
the contractual life of the related loans or commitments. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis over 
the term of the loan based on the principal amount outstanding. 

Loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status when principal or interest becomes ninety days past due, or when 
payment in full is not anticipated. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, interest accrued but not received 
is generally reversed against interest income. If collectability is in doubt, cash receipts on nonaccrual loans are not 
recorded as interest income, but are used to reduce principal. Loans are not returned to accrual status until the 
borrower demonstrates the ability to pay principal and interest. 

Allowance for loan losses: 

The provision for loan losses charged to operating expense reflects the amount deemed appropriate by 
management to establish an adequate allowance to meet the present estimated loss characteristics of the current 
loan portfolio. Management's estimate is based on periodic and regular evaluation of individual loans, the overall 
risk characteristics of the various portfolio segments, past experience with losses, and prevailing and anticipated 
economic conditions. Loans that are determined to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance. The 
provision for loan losses and recoveries on loans previously charged off are added to the allowance. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Aflowance for loan losses, cont inued: 

The Company accounts for impaired loans at the loan's fair value if it is probable that the lender will be unable to 
collect all amounts due in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement. Fair value may be determined based 
upon the present value of expected cash flows, market price of the loan, if available, or value of the underlying 
collateral. Expected cash flows are required to be discounted at the loan's effective interest rate. 

When the ultimate collectability of an impaired loan's principal is in doubt, wholly or partially, all cash receipts are 
applied to principal. Once the reported principal balance has been reduced to zero, future cash receipts are 
recoveries of any amounts previously charged off. Further cash receipts are applied to interest income to the 
extent that any interest has been foregone. 

The Company designates loan modifications as troubled debt restructurings ("TDRs") when, for economic or legal 
reasons related to the borrower's financial difficulties, a concession is granted to the borrower that would not 
otherwise be considered. Once a loan is classified as a TDR, it is also classified as an impaired loan. If a loan 
demonstrated performance under the previous terms and shows capacity to continue performing under the 
restructured terms, the loan will remain on accrual status. If the loan does not perform under the modified terms, 
the loan is placed on nonaccrual status. However, if a loan is materially delinquent on payments prior to the 
restructuring, but shows capacity to perform under the modified terms, the loan will be placed on nonaccrual 
status. 

A loan currently on nonaccrual status will return to accrual status when there is economic substance to the 
restructuring, the remaining note is reasonably assured of repayment in accordance with its modified terms, and 
the borrower has demonstrated sustained repayment performance in accordance with the modified terms for a 
reasonable period of time (typically six months). 

Premises and equipment: 

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Maintenance and repairs are charged 
to operations while major improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of premises 
and equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss is 
included in income from operations. 

Bank owned life insurance: 

The Company has entered into arrangements that provide for deferred compensation for certain officers. Bank 
owned life insurance policies provide an informal and indirect method for funding those arrangements. The 
amounts recorded as bank owned life insurance in the consolidated balance sheets represent the cash surrender 
value of the policies. The deferred compensation liability is included in other liabilities at the present value of the 
obligation. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Assets acquired in settlement of/oans: 

Assets acquired in settlement of loans include real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed taken in lieu of 
foreclosure and repossessed assets. These assets are recorded at fair value, less estimated costs to sell, at the 
date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Loan losses arising from the acquisition of such property as of 
that date are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically 
performed by management, and the assets are carried at the lower of the new cost basis or fair value, less 
estimated costs to sell. Revenues and expenses from operations and changes in any subsequent valuation 
allowance are included in other noninterest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

Goodwiff: 

Goodwill is calculated as the purchase premium after adjusting for the fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill 
is not amortized but is reviewed for potential impairment on an annual basis, or when events or circumstances 
indicate a potential impairment, at the reporting unit level. The impairment test is performed in two phases. The 
first step of the goodwill impairment test compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, 
including goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting 
unit is not considered impaired; however, if the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an 
additional step has to be performed. This additional step compares the implied fair value of the reporting unit's 
goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. An impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the carrying 
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, it was determined that the 
Company's recorded goodwill was not impaired. 

Income taxes: 

The Company uses an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting of deferred income taxes. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and 
income tax bases of assets and liabilities as measured by the currently enacted tax rates which are assumed will 
be in effect when these differences reverse. If it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax 
asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recognized. Deferred income tax expense or credit is the result 
of changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities. 

Advertising and public relations expense: 

The Company generally expenses advertising and promotion costs as they are incurred. External costs incurred in 
producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. External costs relating to 
direct mailings are expensed in the period in which the direct mailings are sent. 

Earnings per common share: 

Net income available to common shareholders per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding. The treasury stock method is used to compute the effect of stock options 
on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for diluted earnings per common share. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Earnings per common shore, continued: 

As it relates to the Series A Preferred Stock, for diluted earnings per share, it is assumed that the preferred stock 
was converted to common stock during the reporting period. Dividends on the preferred stock are added back to 
net income and the shares assumed to be converted are included in the number of shares outstanding. 

Statement of cash flows: 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those amounts included in the 
balance sheet caption "Cash and cash equivalents". Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity of three 
months or less. 

Retirement plan: 

The Company has a salary reduction profit sharing plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code 
as more fully described in Note 15. The Company does not sponsor any postretirement or postemployment 
benefits, except with respect to certain supplemental benefits that were provided to certain executive officers by 
the Board of Directors, as more fully described in Note 15. 

Fair value of financial instruments: 

The Company is required to provide disclosures of fair value information for financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets, when it is practicable to estimate the fair value. Financial 
instruments are defined as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity or contractual obligations, which 
require the exchange of cash or other financial instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the 
disclosure requirements, including the Company's common stock and other nonfinancial instruments such as 
property and equipment and other assets and liabilities. See Note 18 for fair value disclosures. 

Risks and uncertainties: 

In the normal course of business the Company encounters two significant types of risks: economic and regulatory. 
There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company is 
subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature at different times, 
or on different bases, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company's loan and 
investment securities portfolios that results from a borrower's inability or unwillingness to make contractually 
required payments. Market risk reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans receivable and the 
valuation of real estate held by the Company. 

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies (regulatory risk). These regulations 
can and do change significantly from period to period. The Company undergoes periodic examinations conducted 
by the regulatory agencies which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations, amounts of 
required loan loss allowance, and operating restrictions resulting from the regulators' judgments based on 
information available to them at the time of their examination. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Share-based compensation: 

The Company has a share-based employee compensation plan, which is described more fully in Note 16. 

Comprehensive income (loss): 

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income or loss for the current period and other comprehensive 
income (loss), defined as income, expenses, gains and losses that bypass the consolidated statements of income 
and are reported directly in a separate component of shareholders' equity. The Company classifies and reports 
items of other comprehensive income (loss) according to their nature, reports total comprehensive income or loss 
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and displays the accumulated balance of other 
comprehensive income or loss separately in consolidated statements of changes in shareholders' equity and in 
the shareholders' equity section of the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 17 for further discussion. 

Recently Issued accounting pronouncements: 

The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements: 

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance to change the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. The 
core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to reflect the transfer of goods and 
services to customers in an amount equal to the consideration the entity receives or expects to receive. The 
guidance will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. 

The Company will apply the guidance using a full retrospective approach. The Company's revenue is comprised 
of net interest income and non interest income. The scope of the guidance explicitly excludes net interest income 
as well as many other revenues for financial assets and liabilities including loans, leases, securities, and derivatives. 
Accordingly, the majority of our revenues will not be affected. The Company is currently assessing our revenue 
contracts related to revenue streams that are within the scope of the standard. Our accounting policies will not 
change materially since the principles of revenue recognition from the ASU are largely consistent with existing 
guidance and current practices applied by our businesses. We have not identified material changes to the timing 
or amount of revenue recognition. Based on the updated guidance, we do anticipate changes in our disclosures 
associated with our revenues. We will provide qualitative disclosures of our performance obligations related to 
our revenue recognition and we continue to evaluate disaggregation for significant categories of revenue in the 
scope of the guidance. 

In August 2015, the FASB deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 
As a result of the deferral, the guidance in ASU 2014-09 will be effective for the Company for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company will apply the guidance using a full retrospective approach. 
The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Recently issued accounting pronouncements, continued: 

In January 2016, the FASB amended the Financial Instruments topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to 
address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments. The 
amendments will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within 
those fiscal years. The Company will apply the guidance by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to the 
balance sheet as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. The amendments related to equity securities 
without readily determinable fair values will be applied prospectively to equity investments that exist as of the 
date of adoption ofthe amendments. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect 
on its financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB amended the Leases topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to revise certain 
aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leasing transactions. The amendments will 
be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal 
years. Early adoption is permitted. 

We expect to adopt the guidance using the modified retrospective method and practical expedients for transition . 
The practical expedients allow us to largely account for our existing leases consistent with current guidance except 
for the incremental balance sheet recognition for lessees. We have started an initial evaluation of our leasing 
contracts and activities. We have also started developing our methodology to estimate the right-of use assets and 
lease liabilities, which is based on the present value of lease payments (the December 31, 2017 future minimum 
lease payments were $1.6 million). We do not expect a material change to the timing of expense recognition, but 
we are early in the implementation process and will continue to evaluate the impact. We are evaluating our 
existing disclosures and may need to provide additional information as a result of adoption of the ASU. 

In March 2016, the FASB amended the Revenue from Contracts with Customers topic of the Accounting Standards 
Codification to clarify the implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations and address how an 
entity should assess whether it is the principal or the agent in contracts that include three or more parties. The 
amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The 
Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In March 2016, the FASB issued guidance to simplify several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment 
award transactions including the income tax consequences, the classification of awards as either equity or 
liabilities, and the classification on the statement of cash flows. Additionally, the guidance simplifies two areas 
specific to entities other than public business entities allowing them apply a practical expedient to estimate the 
expected term for all awards with performance or service conditions that have certain characteristics and also 
allowing them to make a one-time election to switch from measuring all liability-classified awards at fair value to 
measuring them at intrinsic value. The amendments will be effective for the Company for annual periods 
beginning after December 15, 2016 and interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption is permitted. 
The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Recently issued accounting pronouncements, continued: 

In April 2016, the FASB amended the Revenue from Contracts with Customers topic of the Accounting Standards 
Codification to clarify guidance related to identifying performance obligations and accounting for licenses of 
intellectual property. The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2017. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial 
statements. 

In May 2016, the FASB amended the Revenue from Contracts with Customers topic of the Accounting Standards 
Codification to clarify guidance related to collectability, noncash consideration, presentation of sales tax, and 
transition. The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2017. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In June 2016, the FASB issued guidance to change the accounting for credit losses and modify the impairment 
model for certain debt securities. The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted for all organizations for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2018. 

The Company will apply the amendments to the ASU through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings 
as of the beginning of the year of adoption. While early adoption is permitted beginning in first quarter 2019, we 
do not expect to elect that option. We are evaluating the impact of the ASU on our consolidated financial 
statements. We expect the ASU will result in an increase in the recorded allowance for loan losses given the change 
to estimated losses over the contractual life of the loans adjusted for expected prepayments. The majority of the 
increase results from longer duration portfolios. In addition to our allowance for loan losses, we will also record 
an allowance for credit losses on debt securities instead of applying the impairment model currently utilized. The 
amount of the adjustments will be impacted by each portfolio's composition and credit quality at the adoption 
date as well as economic conditions and forecasts at that time. 

In August 2016, the FASB amended the Statement of Cash Flows topic of the Accounting Standards Codification 
to clarify how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. 
The amendments will be effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017 including 
interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these 
amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In October 2016, the FASB amended the Consolidation topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to revise 
the consolidation guidance on how a reporting entity that is the single decision maker of a variable interest entity 
(VIE) should treat indirect interests in the entity held through related parties that are under common control with 
the reporting entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that VIE. The amendments will be 
effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016 including interim periods within 
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a 
material effect on its financial statements. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Recently issued accounting pronouncements, continued: 

In December 2016, the FASB issued technical corrections and improvements to the Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers Topic. These corrections make a limited number of revisions to several pieces of the revenue 
recognition standard issued in 2014. The effective date and transition requirements for the technical corrections 
will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company will 
apply the guidance using a full retrospective approach. The Company does not expect these amendments to have 
a material effect on its financial statements. 

In January 2017, the FASB issued guidance to clarify the definition of a business with the objective of adding 
guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or 
disposals) of assets or businesses. The amendment to the Business Combinations Topic is intended to address 
concerns that the existing definition of a business has been applied too broadly and has resulted in many 
transactions being recorded as business acquisitions that in substance are more akin to asset acquisitions. The 
guidance will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early 
adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial 
statements. 

In January 2017, the FASB amended the Goodwill and Other Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to 
simplify the accounting for goodwill impairment for public business entities and other entities that have goodwill 
reported in their financial statements and have not elected the private company alternative for the subsequent 
measurement of goodwill. The amendment removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. A goodwill 
impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit's carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed 
the carrying amount of goodwill. The effective date and transition requirements for the technical corrections will 
be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is 
permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The 
Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In February 2017, the FASB amended the Other Income Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to clarify 
the scope of the guidance on nonfinancial asset derecognition as well as the accounting for partial sales of 
nonfinancial assets. The amendments conform the derecognition guidance on nonfinancial assets with the model 
for transactions in the new revenue standard. The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material 
effect on its financial statements. 

In March 2017, the FASB amended the requirements in the Compensation-Retirement Benefits Topic of the 
Accounting Standards Codification related to the income statement presentation of the components of net 
periodic benefit cost for an entity's sponsored defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans. The 
amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. 
Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its 
financial statements. 
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December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Recently issued accounting pronouncements, continued: 

In March 2017, the FASB amended the requirements in the Receivables-Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs 
Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification related to the amortization period for certain purchased callable 
debt securities held at a premium. The amendments shorten the amortization period for the premium to the 
earliest call date. The amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual periods beginning 
after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these amendments to have 
a material effect on its financial statements. 

In May 2017, the FASB amended the requirements in the Compensation-Stock Compensation Topic of the 
Accounting Standards Codification related to changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award. 
The amendments provide guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment 
award require an entity to apply modification accounting. The amendments will be effective for the Company for 
annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early 
adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial 
statements. 

In February 2018, the FASB Issued (ASU 2018-02), Income Statement (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax 
Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, which requires Companies to reclassify the stranded 
effects in other comprehensive income to retained earnings as a result of the change in the tax rates under the 
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The Company has opted to early adopt this pronouncement by retrospective application 
to each period (or periods) in which the effect of the change in the tax rate under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act is 
recognized. The impact of the reclassification from other comprehensive income to retained earnings is 
approximately $44,000. 

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Note 2. Restrictions on Cash and Due from Banks 

The Bank is required by regulation to maintain average cash reserve balances, computed by applying prescribed 
percentages to its various types of deposits, either at the Bank or in an account maintained with the Federal 
Reserve Bank. The average amounts of the cash reserve balances required at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 
approximately $56,000 and $878,000, respectively. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 3. Investment Securities 

The aggregate amortized cost and estimated fair values of securities, as well as gross unrealized gains and losses 
of securities were as follows: 

December 31 
2017 2016 

Gross Gross Gross Gross 
unrealized unrealized Estimated unrealized unrealized Estimated 

Amortized holding holding fair Amortized holding holding fair 
cost gains losses value cost gains losses value 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Available-for-sale 

Government-sponsored 
enterprises (GSEs) $ 6,000 $ $ 137 $ 5,863 $ 7,000 $ - $ 139 $ 6,861 

State, county and municipal 2,844 32 2,812 6,716 50 64 6,702 
Mortgage-backed securities 

Issued by GSEs 12,902 29 166 12,765 12,144 49 213 11,980 
Total $ 21.746 $ 29 $ 335 $ 21,440 $ 25,860 $ 99 $ 416 $ 25,543 

Securities issued by government-sponsored enterprises include debt instruments issued by the Federal Home 
Loan Banks, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Company, and the Federal National Mortgage Association. The 
amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected 
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay 
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

Due within one year 
Due after one through five years 
Due after five through ten years 
Due after ten years 

$ 

$ 

Available-for-sale 
Amortized Estimated 

cost fair value 
(Dollars in thousands) 

- $ 
3,005 2,980 
5,184 5,085 

13,557 13,375 

21,746 -=$====21,,,..==44=0 

The estimated fair values and gross unrealized losses of all of the Company's investment securities whose 
estimated fair values were less than amortized cost as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 which had not been 
determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired are presented below. The securities have been aggregated by 
investment category and the length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss 
position. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 3. Investment Securities, Continued 

Continuously in Unrealized loss Position for a Period of 
less than 12 Months 12 Months or more Total 

Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized 

Available-for-sale, December 31, 2017: 
Government-sponsored enterprises 
State, county and municipal securities 
Mortgage-backed securities issued by 
GSEs 

Total 

Available-for-sale, December 31, 2016: 
Government-sponsored enterprises 
State, county and municipal securities 
Mortgage-backed securities issued by 
GSEs 

Total 

fair value loss fair value loss fair value loss 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

- $ 
694 

5,046 

-
1 

29 

30 5,740 -=$===== 

5,861 $ 139 
2,802 64 

8,573 213 
17,236 $ 416 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(Dollars in thousands) 
5,863 $ 137 $ 5,863 $ 
1,683 32 2,377 

5 847 136 10,893 
13.393 $ 305 $ 19.133 $ 

(Dollars in thousands) 

- $ $ 5,861 $ 
2,802 

8,573 
- $ - $ 17,236 $ 

137 
33 

165 
335 

139 
64 

213 
~16 

The Company individually evaluated the above noted securities that were in an unrealized loss position at 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, noting that the securities are primarily in an unrealized loss position due to interest 
rate factors and the broader economy in general. Based on this evaluation of these securities, no other-than­
tem porary impairment was noted at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB") and, accordingly, is required to own 
restricted stock in that institution in amounts that may vary from time to time. The FHLB stock is carried at cost 
because it has no quoted market value and no ready market exists. Investment in FHLB stock is a condition of 
borrowing from the FHLB, and the stock is pledged to collateralize the borrowings. Dividends received on FHLB 
stock are included in other interest income. During 2017, the Bank purchased $590,000 and redeemed $639,000 
in FHLB stock. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the investment in FHLB stock was $1,271,000 and $1,319,000, 
respectively. 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, securities with a carrying value of $250,000 were pledged as collateral to secure 
FHLB advances, public deposits and other purposes. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 4. Loans 

Loans consisted of the following as of December 31: 

Commercial, financial and agricultural 
Real estate - construction, land development and other land loans 
Real estate - mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 

Loans, gross 
Allowance for possible loan losses 

Loans - net 

$ 

$ 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

157,074 $ 130,577 
54,580 38,371 

289,029 214,679 
50)11 35.164 

551,394 418,791 
{7,414) {5i158) 

543,980 $ 413,633 

Variable rate and fixed rate loans totaled $182,296,000 and $369,098,000, respectively, at December 31, 2017. 

At December 31, 2017, approximately $36,180,000 of loans were pledged as collateral to secure amounts 
borrowed from the FHLB. 

The Company has purchased a portfolio of student loans with a carrying value of $43,500,000 and $30,219,000 at 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying value and accrued interest of these loans is 98% 
guaranteed by the issuing guarantee agency. These loans are included above in Installment loans to individuals. 

Credit quality: 

The following table summarizes delinquencies and nonaccruals, by portfolio class, as of December 31, 2017. 

30-59 days past due 
60-89 days past due 
90 days, still accruing 
Nonaccrual 
Total past due and nonaccrual 
Current 

Total loans 

Commercial, 
financial 

and 
agricultural 

$ 43 
58 

476 
577 

156.497 
$ 157,074 

Real estate -
construction, 

land 
development 

and other Real estate-
land loans mortgage 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ - $ - $ 
66 

1,268 
1,334 

54,580 287.695 
$ 289,029 54,580 ~$=~== $ 

20 

Installment 
loans to 

individuals 

1,342 
1,597 
3,417 

6,356 
44.355 
50.711 

$ 

$ 

Total 

1,385 
1,721 
3,417 
1 744 
8,267 

543i127 
551,394 



GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 4. Loans, Continued 

Credit quality, continued: 

Of the amounts listed above, $1,317,000 of the 30-59 days past due, $1,561,000 of the 60-89 days past due and 
$3,417,000 of the greater than 90 days past due, still accruing are 98% guaranteed as to principal and interest by 
the issuing guarantee agency, and therefore have continued to be accounted for as accruing loans. After 270 days 
of the borrower's default, the third-party loan servicer will file a claim. The guarantee payment will be for the 
guaranteed percentage of principal and interest through the date the claim is paid. 

The following table summarizes delinquencies and nonaccruals, by portfolio class, as of December 31, 2016. 

Real estate -
construction, 

Commercial, land 
financial development Installment 

and and other Real estate- loans to 
agricultural land loans mortgage individuals Total 

(Dollars in thousands) 

30-59 days past due $ 18 $ 1,070 $ 614 $ 2,070 $ 3,772 
60-89 days past due 1,140 938 2,078 
90 days, still accruing 4,627 4,627 
Nonaccrual 1,117 78 1,975 3170 
Total past due and nonaccrual 1,135 1,148 3,729 7,635 13,647 
Current 129,442 37,223 210,950 27,529 405,144 

Total loans s 130,577 s 38,321 s 2H,fiZ9 s 35,164 s 4113.791 

Of the installment loans to individuals listed above, $2,067,000 of the 30-59 days past due, $910,000 of the 60-89 
days past due and $4,627,000 of the greater than 90 days past due, still accruing are 98% guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by the issuing guarantee agency, and therefore have continued to be accounted for as 
accruing loans. After 270 days of the borrower's default, the third-party loan servicer will file a claim. The 
guarantee payment will be for the guaranteed percentage of principal and interest through the date the claim is 
paid. 

The gross interest income that would have been recorded under the original terms of the nonaccrual loans was 
$227,000 and $152,000 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

As part of the loan review process, loans are given individual credit grades, representing the risk the Company 
believes is associated with the loan balance. Credit grades are assigned based on factors that impact the 
collectability of the loan, the strength of the borrower, the type of collateral, and loan performance. Commercial 
loans are individually graded at origination and credit grades are reviewed on a regular basis in accordance with 
our loan policy. Consumer loans are assigned a "pass" credit rating unless something within the loan warrants a 
specific classification grade. 
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GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 4. Loans, Continued 

Credit quality, continued: 

The following table summarizes management's internal credit risk grades, by portfolio class, as of 
December 31, 2017. 

Real estate -
construction, 

Commercial, land 
financial development Installment 

and and other Real estate- loans to 
agricultural land loans mortgage individuals Total 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Grade 1- Minimum risk $ 196 $ - $ - $ 232 $ 428 
Grade 2 - High quality 1,151 335 10 1,496 
Grade 3 -Above average 1,100 59 5,927 32 7,118 
Grade 4 -Average 20,187 9,738 84,793 962 115,680 
Grade 5 -Acceptable 131,947 43,293 183,213 49,409 407,862 
Grade 6 - Watch list 1,421 1,066 4,370 56 6,913 
Grade 7 - Substandard 1,072 424 10,391 10 11,897 

Total loans $ 157,074 $ 54,580 $ 289,029 $ 50,711 $ 551,394 

The following table summarizes management's internal credit risk grades, by portfolio class, as of 
December 31, 2016. 

Commercial, 
financial 

and 
agricultural 

Grade 1- Minimum risk $ 93 
Grade 2 - High quality 
Grade 3 -Above average 
Grade 4 -Average 
Grade 5 -Acceptable 
Grade 6 - Watch list 
Grade 7 - Substandard 

Total loans $ 

108 
1,466 

15,784 
111,329 

397 
lAOO 

130,577 

Real estate -
construction, 

land 
development 

and other Real estate-
land loans mortgage 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ - $ - $ 
355 

12,262 
13,890 62,567 
18,966 123,267 

1,755 9,364 
3J60 6,864 

$ 38,371 $ 214,679 $ 

22 

Installment 
loans to 

individuals 

165 

34 
508 

34,450 
2 
5 

35,164 

$ 

$ 

Total 

258 
463 

13,762 
92,749 

288,012 
11,518 
12,029 

418,791 



GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 4. Loans, Continued 

Credit qualltv, continued: 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately 97% and 94%, respectively, of the loan portfolio, had a credit 
grade of Acceptable or better. For loans to qualify for this grade, they must be performing relatively close to 
expectations, with no significant departures from the intended source and timing of repayment. Loans totaling 
$6.9 million and $11.5 million were classified as watch list at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. This 
classification is utilized for loans with an elevated credit risk to borrowers with an adequate credit history and 
financial strength and are experiencing declining trends (e.g., financial, economic, or industry specific). Loans are 
designated as such in order to be monitored more closely than other credits in the loan portfolio. At December 31, 
2017 and 2016, substandard loans totaled $11.9 million and $12.0 million, respectively. This classification is 
employed when loans are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the borrower 
or of the collateral pledged; have well-defined weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the loan; and there 
is a distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. 

The following tables summarize information relative to impaired loans individually evaluated for impairment, by 
portfolio class, at December 31, 2017 and 2016. The recorded investment in impaired loans is the unpaid principal 
balance, net of loan principal charged off. 

With no related allowance recorded: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 
Real estate- construction, land development and other land 

loans 
Real estate - mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 

With related allowance recorded: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural 
Real estate- construction, land development and other land 

loans 
Real estate - mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 

Total: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural 
Real estate- construction, land development and other land 

loans 
Real estate - mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 

23 

$ 

December 31, 2017 
Unpaid 

principal 
balance 

Recorded Related 
investment allowance 

(Dollars in thousands) 

- $ 

202 
5,412 

585 

1,812 

585 

202 
7,224 

8.011 $ 

- $ 

202 
5,412 

585 

1,812 

585 

202 
7,224 

230 

302 

230 

302 

8,011 =$=====5==3=2 



GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 4. Loans, Continued 

Credit quality, continued: 

With no related allowance recorded: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 
Real estate- construction, land development and other land 

loans 
Real estate - mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 

With related allowance recorded: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural 
Real estate- construction, land development and other land 

loans 
Real estate - mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 

Total: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural 
Real estate- construction, land development and other land 

loans 
Real estate - mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 

$ 

Decernber31,2016 
Unpaid 

principal 
balance 

Recorded Related 
investment allowance 

(Dollars in thousands) 

1,117 $ 

2,186 
5,430 

1,360 
606 

1,117 

3,546 
6,036 

10.699 $ 

1,117 $ 

2,186 
5,430 

1,360 
606 

1,117 

3,546 
6,036 

359 
2 

359 
2 

10.699 ""=$===3=6=1 

The average amounts of impaired loans were $4,508,000 and $4,051,000 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. Interest 
income recognized on impaired loans during the time that the loans were impaired in 2017 and 2016 was $253,000 
and $123,000, respectively. 
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December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 4. Loans, Continued 

Provision and allowance for loan losses: 

The following tables summarize activity related to our allowance for loan losses for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 by portfolio segment. 

Allowance for loan losses: 

Commercial, 
financial 

and 
agricultural 

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,504 
Provision for loan losses 4,241 
Loan charge-offs (3,847) 
Loan recoveries 282 

4,180 Balance, end of year =$====""" 

Individually reviewed for 
impairment $ 

Collectively reviewed for 
impairment 

Total allowance for loan 
losses 

Gross loans, end of period: 

$ 

230 

3,950 

4,180 

December 31 2017 
Real estate -
construction, 

land 
development 

and other Real estate-
land loans mortgage 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 578 $ 940 $ 
398 1,456 

(438) 
57 113 

$ 595 $ 2,509 $ 

$ - $ 302 $ 

595 2,207 

$ 595 $ 2,509 $ 

Individually reviewed for 
impairment 

Collectively reviewed for 
impairment 

$ 585 $ 202 $ 

54,378 

7,224 $ 

281,805 156,489 
Total loans $ 157,074 $ 54.580 $ 289.029 $ 

25 

Installment 
loans to 

individuals 

136 
(6) 

(10) 
10 

130 

-

130 

130 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

- $ 

Total 

5,158 
6,089 

(4,295) 
462 

7,414 

532 

6,882 

7,414 

8,011 

50,711 543,383 

so. 711 "=$ ===S='S="l=', 3"=9==4 



GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 311 2017 and 2016 

Note 4. Loans, Continued 

Provision and allowance for loan losses, continued: 

December 31 2016 
Real estate -
construction, 

Commercial, land 
financial development Installment 

and and other Real estate- loans to 
agricultural land loans mortgage individuals Total 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Allowance for loan losses: 
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,973 $ 169 $ 654 $ 519 $ 4,315 
Provision for loan losses 2,112 406 1,133 (382) 3,269 
Loan charge-offs (1,954) (10) (856) (1) (2,821) 
Loan recoveries 373 13 9 395 

Balance, end of year $ 3.504 $ 578 $ 940 $ 136 $ 5.158 

Individually reviewed for 
impairment $ - $ 359 $ 2 $ - $ 361 

Collectively reviewed for 
impairment 3,504 219 938 136 4 797 

Total allowance for loan 
losses $ 3,504 $ 578 $ 940 $ 136 $ 5,158 

Gross loans, end of period: 
Individually reviewed for 

impairment $ 1,117 $ 3,546 $ 6,036 $ - $ 10,699 
Collectively reviewed for 

impairment 1291460 34,825 208,643 351164 4081092 
Total loans $ 130.577 $ 38.371 $ 214,679 $ 35.164 $ ~18.791 

There were no irrevocable commitments to lend additional funds to debtors owing amounts on impaired loans at 
December 31, 2017. 

Troubled debt restructurings are loans which have been restructured from their original contractual terms and 
include concessions that would not otherwise have been granted outside of the financial difficulty of the 
borrower. Concessions can relate to the contractual interest rate, maturity date, or payment structure of the note. 
As part of our workout plan for individual loan relationships, we may restructure loan terms to assist borrowers 
facing challenges in the current economic environment. The purpose of a troubled debt restructuring is to 
facilitate ultimate repayment of the loan. 
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Note 4. Loans, Continued 

Provision and allowance for loan losses, continued: 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the principal balance of troubled debt restructurings totaled $2.1 million and 
$1.7 million, respectively. All troubled debt restructurings were considered classified and impaired. Of the 
balance outstanding at December 31, 2017 and 2016, $81,000 and $0 were on nonaccrual, respectively. The 
remaining loans are currently performing in accordance with the new terms. 

Troubled Debt Restructurings: 
Commercial, financial and agricultural 
Real estate-construction, land development and other land 

loans 
Real estate-mortgage 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Number 

Pre- Post-
Modification Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
of contracts Investment Investment 

(Dollars in thousands) 

3 $ 

2 
1 

194 $ 

202 
239 

194 

202 
239 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company modified six loans that were considered to be troubled 
debt restructurings. The terms were extended for one of these loans, interest rate was lowered for two of these 
loans and payments were changed from principal and interest payments to interest only payments for five of 
these loans. 

As of December 31, 2017, no loans that had previously been restructured prior to December 31, 2016, were in 
default. One loan restructured in the 12 months prior to December 31, 2017 went into default during the period. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company did not modify any loans that were considered to be 
troubled debt restructurings. 

As of December 31, 2016, one loan that had previously been restructured prior to December 31, 2015, was in 
default with a recorded investment of $0 as of year end. No loans restructured in the 12 months prior to 
December 31, 2016 went into default during the period. 
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December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 5. Assets Acquired In Settlement of Loans 

Activity in the accounts for assets acquired in settlement of loans is as follows: 

Balance, beginning of year 
Additions 
Sales 
Impairment write downs 
Balance, end of year 

Note 6. Premises and Equipment 

Premises and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31: 

Land and land improvements 
Building and leasehold improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 
Construction-in-progress 

Total 
Accumulated depreciation 

Premises and equipment, net 

$ 

s 

$ 

s 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

4,902 $ 5,275 
954 483 

(645) (611) 
{288) {245) 

4,923 s 4,9Q2 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

4,338 $ 4,226 
8,451 6,228 
2,323 1,937 

832 762 
91 242 

16,035 13,395 
{31820) {31184) 
12,215 s 10,211 

The balance of construction-in-progress as of December 31, 2017 was primarily related to an equipment upgrade. 
Additional commitments related to the equipment upgrade amount to $43,000. 

Depreciation expense was $772,000 and $600,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
Estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation for the principal items follow: 

Type of Asset 

Software 
Furniture and equipment 
Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles 

Life in Years 

3 

5to 7 
5to40 
3 
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Depreciation Method 

Straight-line 
Straight-line 
Straight-line 
Straight-line 



GrandSouth Bancorporation and Subsidiary 
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December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Note 7. Deposits 

A summary of deposits follows as of December 31: 

Noninterest bearing demand 
Interest bearing: 

Demand accounts 
Money market accounts 
Savings 

Time certificates of deposit, less than $100,000 
Time certificates of deposit, $100,000 and over 

Total deposits 

$ 

$ 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

89,688 $ 69,878 

7,679 6,855 
226,787 186,330 

4141 3,324 
328,295 266,387 

76,869 49,983 
164,834 113,957 
241,703 163,940 
S69.998 $ 430,327 

Interest expense on time deposits greater than $100,000 was $1,532,000 and $1,114,000 in 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. Brokered deposits were $11,104,000 and $16,976,000 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, $19,000 and $86,000, respectively, of overdrawn demand 
deposit balances were reclassified as loans. 

At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities oftime deposits are as follows (dollars in thousands): 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
Thereafter 

Total time deposits 

$ 

$ 

167,223 
38,560 
35,218 

119 
569 

14 
241.703 

Time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC insurance limit of $250,000 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 
$53,655,000 and $25,304,000 respectively. These amounts do not include brokered deposits greater than 
$250,000 which are fully insured. 

Note 8. Short-Term Borrowings 

As of December 31, 2017, the banking subsidiary had unused short-term credit accommodations available from 
three unrelated banks which allows the banking subsidiary to purchase up to $27 million of federal funds. The 
lenders reserve the right to withdraw the lines at their option. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively 
there were no federal funds purchased under these lines. 

The other borrowings are secured with 100% of the capital stock of the subsidiary bank. The borrowings had an 
interest rate of 4.25% at December 31, 2017. 
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Note 8. Short-Term Borrowings, Continued 

The Company's other borrowings as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 with a variable rate is as follows: 

Interest rate of Wall Street Journal Prime Rate minus 0.25% {4.250% at 
December 31, 2017) with a floor of 3.75%, maturing September 6, 2019 

Total 

Note 9. Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 

$ 
$ 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

550 ~$~~~-
550 =$======= 

The FHLB advances are secured with approximately $36.2 million of mortgage loans and $1.3 million of stock in 
the FHLB. The FHLB advances had a weighted average interest rate of 1.87% and 0.80% as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016, respectively. 

The Company's FHLB Advances as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 with fixed rates are as follows : 

Interest rate 2.341%, maturing March 3, 2022 
Total 

$ 
$ 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

7,000 .._$ ___ _ 

7 .000 =$======= 

The Company's FHLB Advances as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 with variable rates are as follows : 

Interest rate of the FHLB Daily Rate (1.59% at December 31, 2017), 
maturing December 28, 2018 

Interest rate of the FHLB Daily Rate (0.800% at December 31, 2016), 
maturing December 26, 2017 

Total 

$ 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

12,000 $ 

i...$ ____ - .a;.,$ _ ___,,;2=2 .... 0 __ 0=0 

$ 12.000 "'=$ ==22...,.0==0==0 

At December 31, 2017, the Bank had unused credit availability of up to $168,257,000 under the FHLB's various 
credit programs, subject to pledging and other requirements. The amount of eligible collateral instruments 
available as of December 31, 2017 to secure any additional FHLB borrowings totaled approximately $7,218,000. 
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Note 10. Capital Trust and Junior Subordinated Debentures 

On May 3, 2006, the Company sponsored the creation of a Delaware statutory trust, GrandSouth Capital Trust I, 
(the "Trust") and is the sole owner of the $247,000 of common securities issued by the Trust. On May 10, 2006, 
the Trust issued $8,000,000 in floating rate capital securities. The proceeds of this issuance, and the amount of 
the Company's investment in the common securities, were used to acquire $8,247,000 principal amount of the 
Company's floating rate junior subordinated debt securities due in 2036 ("Debentures"). These securities, and the 
accrued interest thereon, now constitute the Trust's sole assets. The interest rate associated with the debt 
securities, and the distribution rate on the common securities of the Trust, is adjustable quarterly at 3 month 
LIBOR plus 185 basis points (aggregating 3.33738% at December 31, 2017). The Company may defer interest 
payments on the Debentures for up to 20 consecutive quarters, but not beyond the stated maturity of the 
Debentures. In the event that such interest payments are deferred by the Company, the Trust may defer 
distributions on the capital and common securities. In such an event, the Company would be restricted in its ability 
to pay dividends on its common stock and perform under obligations that are not senior to the Debentures. The 
Company has not elected to defer any distributions. 

The Debentures are redeemable at par at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, on any interest payment 
date on or after June 23, 2011. Upon repayment or redemption of the Debentures, the Trust will use the proceeds 
of the transaction to redeem an equivalent amount of capital securities and common securities. The Trust's 
obligations under the capital securities are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. In accordance with 
applicable accounting standards, the Trust is not consolidated in the Company's financial statements. 

Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies 

During 2017 and 2016, the Company incurred approximately $286,000 and $800,000, respectively, in legal and 
consulting fees associated with an investigation into possible wrongdoing by a former customer of the Company 
and three former employees of the Company. The Company is a victim and not a defendant in the 
case. Investigation of the matter is currently ongoing. The outcome is not known or determinable at this time. 

The Company is a named defendant in a lawsuit whereby the Plaintiff alleges wrongdoing related to non­
solicitation agreements and hiring practices of certain employees. The outcome is not known or determinable at 
this time. 

The Company is party to other litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business, other than that noted 
above. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that the liabilities, if any, arising from such 
litigation in the normal course of business and claims will not be material to the Company's financial position or 
results of operations. 

The Company leases land upon which it constructed a branch office under a non-cancelable operating lease which 
expires in March 2038. The lease requires monthly lease payments of $800 and contains four renewal options of 
five years each which contain provisions for adjustments to the monthly lease payments. The lease agreement 
requires the Company to pay all property taxes. 
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Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies, Continued 

The future minimum lease payments due under the current operating leases as of December 31, 2017, are as 
follows (dollars in thousands): 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
Thereafter 

Total 

Note 12. Income Taxes 

$ 

$ 

301 
331 
334 
192 
120 
316 

1.594 

The following summary of the provision for income taxes includes tax deferrals, which arise from temporary 
differences in the recognition of certain items of revenues and expense for tax and financial reporting purposes: 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Current 
Federal expense $ 2,006 $ 1,739 
State expense 136 143 

Total current 2,142 1,882 

Deferred 
Federal expense/(benefit) (51) (11) 

State expense/(benefit) {128} 9 
(189) (2) 

Change in valuation allowance 36 {5) 
Total income tax expense $ 1,999 $ 1,875 
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Note 12. Income Taxes, Continued 

The income tax effects of cumulative temporary differences at December 31 are as follows: 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Deferred tax assets 
Allowance for loan losses $ 915 $ 325 
Other real estate owned 563 801 
Amortization of intangibles 176 397 
Nonaccrual loan interest 40 53 
State net operating loss carryforward 186 150 
Deferred compensation 273 390 
Unrealized net holding losses on 

available-for-sale securities 69 122 
Other 86 107 

Gross deferred tax assets 2,308 2,345 
Valuation allowance {186) {150) 

Total $ 2,122 $ 2,195 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Accelerated depreciation $ 391 $ 306 
Other 67 359 

Gross deferred tax liabilities 458 665 
Net deferred income tax assets $ 1,664 $ 1,530 

Deferred income taxes are measured at the enacted tax rate for the period in which they are expected to reverse. 
In December 2017 the U.S. Congress passed and the President signed legislation which reduced the statutory 
corporate tax rate to 21% effective January 1, 2018 and for all taxable years ending after that date. Therefore, 
deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2017 have been measured using the tax rate enacted for subsequent 
years of 21%. The impact of this change in tax rate is additional income tax expense of $932,000. $44,000 of the 
impact was related to unrealized net holding losses on available-for-sale securities and was charged to income tax 
expense. This resulted in an amount of deferred tax "stranded" in Other Comprehensive Income. A one-time 
reclassification of $44,000 between Other Comprehensive Income and Retained Earnings was posted to eliminate 
the "stranded" deferred tax. 

Deferred tax assets represent the future benefit of deductible differences, and if it is more likely than not that a 
tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to net 
realizable value. The deferred tax asset valuation allowance for 2017 and 2016 is related to the Company's stand­
alone state net operating loss carryforwards. Management believes realization of all other deferred tax assets is 
more likely than not and accordingly has not recorded any other valuation allowance. 
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Note 12. Income Taxes, Continued 

The Company has state net operating losses for income tax purposes of approximately $4,711,000 as of 
December 31, 2017. These state net operating losses expire 2018 through 2037. 

The provision for income taxes is reconciled to the amount of income tax computed at the federal statutory rate 
of 34% on income before income taxes as follows for the year ended December 31: 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Tax expense at statutory rate $ 948 $ 1,720 
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit 5 101 
Tax-exempt interest income (30) (71) 
Bank-owned life insurance increase (41) (48) 

Change in valuation allowance 36 (5) 
Change in enacted income tax rate 932 
Other, net 149 178 

Total $ 1,999 $ 1,875 

The company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and concluded it has 
no liability related to uncertain tax positions in accordance with current accounting guidance. 

The Company and its subsidiary file income tax returns with the federal government and various states. With few 
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to federal or state income tax examinations by tax authorities for 
years before 2014. 

Note 13. Related Party Transactions 

Certain directors, executive officers and companies with which they are affiliated are customers of and have 
banking transactions, including loans and commitments to lend, with the Bank in the ordinary course of business. 
Such transactions are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those 
prevailing at the time for comparable arms-length transactions. A summary of loan and commitment transactions 
with directors and executive officers, including their affiliates, follows : 

Balance, beginning of year 
New loans 
Less loan payments 
Balance, end of year 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 3,984 $ 2,639 
6,778 1,759 

_ _ _,_(2=,0=9=5) __ ___._(4""-'l"-'-4) 

$ 8,667 ==$ ====3==, 9"=8==4 

Deposits of directors and their related interests at December 31, 2017 and 2016 approximated $6,944,000 and 
$5,312,000, respectively. 
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Note 13. Related Party Transactions, Continued 

The Company leases land from a relative of a director, shareholder and executive officer of the Company (see 
Note 11). Lease expenses charged to operations under these arrangements totaled $12,000 in 2017 and 2016. 

Note 14. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk 

In the ordinary course of business, and to meet the financing needs of its customers, the Bank is party to various 
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. These financial instruments, which include commitments to 
extend credit and standby letters of credit, involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in 
excess of the amounts recognized in the balance sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the 
extent of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments. 

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument 
for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those 
instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does 
for on-balance sheet instruments. Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long 
as there is no violation of any material condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed 
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2017 and 
2016, unfunded commitments to extend credit were $214,598,000 and $148,550,000, respectively. The Bank 
evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed 
necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the borrower. 
Collateral varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and commercial 
and residential real estate. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were outstanding letters of credit totaling 
$3,203,000 and $1,190,000, respectively. 

Note 15. Employee Benefit Plan 

The Bank sponsors the GrandSouth Bank Profit Sharing Section 401(k) Plan (the "Plan") for the benefit of all eligible 
employees. The Bank contributes 100% of the first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of the employee's compensation 
contributed to the Plan. Contributions made to the Plan in 2017 and 2016 were $386,000 and $310,000, 
respectively. 

In 2001, supplemental benefits were approved by the Board of Directors for certain executive officers of the Bank. 
These benefits are not qualified under the Internal Revenue Code, and they are not funded. However, certain 
funding is provided informally and indirectly by life insurance policies owned by the Bank. The Company recorded 
net expense related to these benefits of $117,000 and $113,000 in 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Note 16. Stock Option Plan 

During 1998, the Board of Directors approved a stock option plan for the benefit of the directors, officers and 
employees (the "1998 Plan"). The plan provided that the Board could grant options to purchase up to 856,028 
shares of common stock (after the shareholders approved an amendment to increase the number of shares in the 
plan at the 2005 Annual Meeting) at an exercise price per share not less than the fair market value on the date of 
grant. The Company issues new shares to satisfy option exercises. The stock option plan expired in 2008. 
Consequently, unexpired options granted under the Plan remain outstanding and exercisable subject to their 
terms, but no more options may be granted under the Plan. 
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Note 16. Stock Option Plan 

Upon the expiration of the 1998 Plan, the Board of Directors approved a stock option plan for the benefit of the 
directors, officers and employees effective June 17, 2009 (the "2009 Plan"). The plan provided that the Board 
could grant options to purchase up to 275,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price per share not less than 
the fair market value on the date of grant. Consistent with the 1998 Plan, the Company will issue new shares to 
satisfy option exercises under the 2009 Plan. 

See summary of option activity in table below. In 2012, the 2009 Plan was amended, allowing the Board to increase 
the number of options to purchase up to 487,000 shares of common stock. In 2015, the 2009 Plan was amended, 
allowing the Board to increase the number of options to purchase up to 737,000 shares of common stock. In 2016, 
an amendment to the 2009 Plan was approved by the Board of Directors, allowing the Board to increase the 
number of options to purchase up to 987,000 shares of common stock. 

In 2017, the Company granted 40,000 options to directors, officers and employees that vest 20 percent each year 
for five years and expire 10 years from the grant date. The related compensation expense of the options is 
recognized over the vesting period. In 2016, the Company granted 120,500 options to directors, officers and 
employees that vest 20 percent each year for five years and expire 10 years from the grant date. The related 
compensation expense of the options is recognized over the vesting period. The Company measures the fair value 
of each option award on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following 
assumptions used for awards granted in 2017 and 2016: 

Assumptions: 
Dividend yield 
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 
Weighted average expected volatility 
Weighted average expected life in years 
Weighted average grant date fair value 

2017 

2.76% 
2.07% 

54.02% 
6.50 

$6.03 

The Company determines the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as follows: 

2016 

2.98% 
1.57% 

96.85% 
6.50 

$8.57 

Based on the historical dividend yield of the Company's stock, adjusted to reflect the expected dividend yield 
over the expected life of the option, the risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in 
effect at the time of the grant; volatility is based on the historical volatility adjusted to reflect the ways in 
which current information indicates that the future is reasonably expected to differ from the past; and the 
average life is based on historical behaviors of employees related to exercises, forfeitures and cancellations. 
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Note 16. Stock Option Plan, Continued 

The following table summarizes the activity during 2017 related to stock options awarded by the Company: 

Year Ended December 312 2017 
Weighted 

Weighted average 
average remaining 

exercise price contractual Intrinsic 
Shares per share life (years) value 

Outstanding at beginning of year 382,618 $ 9.43 7.23 $ 1,587,197 
Granted 40,000 14.50 9.32 
Exercised (18,200) 5.64 152,080 
Forfeited or expired {12,000) 15.55 
Outstanding at end of year 392,418 9.94 6.95 1,613,277 
Options outstanding and expected to vest 392,418 9.94 6.95 1,613,277 
Options exercisable at year-end 178,141 6.73 5.42 1,294,492 

The following table summarizes the activity during 2016 related to stock options awarded by the Company: 

Outstanding at beginning of year 
Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited or expired 
Outstanding at end of year 
Options outstanding and expected to vest 
Options exercisable at year-end 

Year Ended December 312 2016 

Shares 

348,398 
120,500 
(36,930) 
{49,350) 

382,218 
382,618 
155,001 
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Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
per share 

$ 7.41 
13.47 
5.24 
8.15 
9.43 
9.43 
5.62 

Weighted 
average 

remaining 
contractual 
life (years) 

Intrinsic 
value 

6.61 $ 2,309,446 
9.51 

301,922 
277,819 

7.23 1,587,197 
7.23 1,587,197 
4.74 1,234,214 
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Note 16. Stock Option Plan, Continued 

The following table summarizes the vesting activity during 2017 related to stock options awarded by the Company: 

Nonvested at beginning of year 
Granted 
Vested 
Forfeited or expired 
Nonvested at end of year 

Year Ended December 311 2017 

Weighted 

average grant 
date fair 
values 

Shares 

227,617 $ 
40,000 

(53,340) 

214.277 

per share 

8.19 
6.03 
7.99 

7.83 

The following table summarizes the vesting activity during 2016 related to stock options awarded by the Company: 

Nonvested at beginning of year 
Granted 
Vested 
Forfeited or expired 
Nonvested at end of year 

Vear Ended December 31, 2016 

Weighted 
average grant 

date fair 
values 

Shares per share 

181,797 $ 6.45 
120,500 8.57 
(47,630) 5.38 
(27,050) 3.13 
227.617 8.19 

As of December 31, 2017, total compensation costs of unvested options that have not yet been recognized were 
$1,448,000. Those compensation costs will be recognized over the remaining weighted average vesting period of 
3.26 years. 

Intrinsic value is calculated for shares outstanding and exercisable by taking the closing price of the Company's 
common stock as of December 31, 2017, as reported by the Over the Counter Bulletin Board (OTCBB), and 
subtracting the exercise price of each stock option grant. When the result is a positive number, the difference is 
multiplied by the number of options outstanding for each such grant and the total of those values is shown in the 
table. Intrinsic value for shares exercised represents the closing price of the stock on the date of exercise as 
reported by the OTCBB less the actual exercise price of the options exercised multiplied by the number of options 
exercised. These intrinsic values are calculated for each exercise during the year, and the resulting total is 
presented. 
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Preferred stock: 

On January 20, 2010, the Company's shareholders approved amendments of its Articles of Incorporation 
authorizing the issuance of up to 287,895 shares of Series A Preferred Stock in one or more series. The Series A 
Preferred Stock has rights equal to common stock with regard to dividends and rights upon liquidation. Unlike 
common stock, the Series A Preferred Stock will not have voting rights except under very limited circumstances. 
The Series A Preferred Stock pays dividends at the rate of 5% greater than common stock per share dividends. 

On September 8, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with the US Treasury as part of a fund established 
under the Small Business Jobs Act of 2010 that was created to encourage lending to small businesses by providing 
capital to qualified community banks with assets less than $10 billion. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company 
issued and sold to the US Treasury, for an aggregate purchase price of $15,422,000, 15,422 shares of the 
Company's Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series T-3. The proceeds from the issuance of the 
Series T-3 stock, along with other available funds, were used to redeem the Series T, T-2 and W preferred stock. 

The dividend rate, as a percentage of the liquidation amount, can fluctuate on a quarterly basis during the first 
10 quarters during which the preferred stock is outstanding, based upon changes in the level of Qualified Small 
Business Lending. As of December 31, 2015, the Company's effective dividend rate was 1.00%. 

On August 26, 2015, the Company repurchased 4,000 shares of the Company's Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual 
Preferred Stock, Series T-3. At December 31, 2015, the US Treasury held 3,922 shares of the Series T-3 stock. 

On January 25, 2016, the Company repurchased the remaining 3,922 shares of the Company's Senior Non­
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series T-3. At that date, the US Treasury no longer held any shares of Series 
T-3 stock. 

Subject to regulatory approval, the Company was generally permitted to redeem the preferred stock at par plus 
unpaid interest. The preferred stock qualified as Tier 1 capital. 

All Series of the Company's Preferred Stock are treated as components of Tier 1 capital for purposes of computing 
the Company's regulatory capital ratios. 

Restrictions on subsidiary dividends, loans or advances: 

In addition to the restrictions specified under the heading "Preferred Stock," South Carolina banking regulations 
restrict the amount of dividends that banks can pay to shareholders. Any of the banking subsidiary's dividends to 
the parent company are subject to the prior approval of the South Carolina Commissioner of Banking based on 
the current regulatory agreement with the subsidiary bank. In addition, dividends paid by the banking subsidiary 
to the parent company would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced 
below applicable minimum capital requirements. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, the amounts of loans 
or advances from the banking subsidiary to the parent company are generally limited to 10% of the Bank's capital 
stock and surplus on a secured basis. Furthermore, in the event that interest payments on the junior subordinated 
debentures (see Note 10) are deferred by the Company, the Company would be restricted in its ability to pay 
dividends on its common stock. The terms of the Company's preferred stock also impose limits on its ability to pay 
dividends. 
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Note 17. Shareholders' Equity, Continued 

Accumulated other comprehensive income: 

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, accumulated other comprehensive income included as a component of 
shareholders' equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of accumulated changes in the unrealized 
holding gains and (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of income tax effects, amounting to ($236,000) and 
($195,000), respectively. 

Earnings per common shore: 

Net income available to common shareholders per share, basic and net income available to common shareholders 
per share, assuming dilution, were computed as follows: 

Earnings per common share, basic 
Numerator - net income available to common 

shareholders 

Denominator 
Weighted average common shares issued and 

outstanding 
Earnings per common share, basic 

Earnings per common share, assuming dilution 
Numerator - net income available to common 

shareholders 
Dividends on Series A preferred stock 

Denominator 
Weighted average common shares issued and 

outstanding 
Effect of dilutive stock options 
If-converted shares of Series A preferred stock 

Total shares outstanding diluted 
Earnings per common share, assuming dilution 

40 

s 

s 

$ 

s 

s 

2017 2016 
(Dollars in thousands 

except share amounts) 

699 =$==~3:a!a.0~6~3 

4.498.555 4.434.979 

0.16 =s=====o=.6==9 

699 $ 3,063 
91 121 

790 s 3.184 

4,498,555 4,434,979 
95,109 97,883 

2871895 2871895 
4.881.559 4.820.757 

0.16 s 0.66 
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Note 17. Shareholders' Equity, Continued 

Regulatory capitol: 

All bank holding companies and banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the 
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and 
possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on 
the Company's consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory 
framework for prompt corrective action, bank holding companies and banks must meet specific capital guidelines 
that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments 
by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

All bank holding companies and banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the 
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and 
possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on 
the Company's consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory 
framework for prompt corrective action, bank holding companies and banks must meet specific capital guidelines 
that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments 
by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and its banking 
subsidiary to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Tier 1, Common Equity Tier 
1 ("CETl"), and Total Capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets and average assets (as defined). 
Management believes, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, that the Company and its subsidiary bank exceeds all 
capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. 

Effective March 31, 2015, quantitative measures established by applicable regulatory standards, including the 
newly implemented Basel Ill revised capital adequacy standards and relevant provisions of the Dodd-Frank All 
Street Report and Consumer Protection Act ("Dodd-Frank Act"), require the Bank to maintain (i) a minimum ratio 
of Tier 1 capital to average total assets, after certain adjustments, of 4.00%, (ii) a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital 
to risk-weighted assets of 6.00%, (iii) a minimum ratio of total-capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.00% and (iv) a 
minimum ratio of CETl to risk-weighted assets of 4.50%. A "well-capitalized" institution must generally maintain 
capital ratios 2.00% higher than the minimum guidelines. 

In order to avoid restrictions on capital distributions or discretionary bonus payments to executives, the Company 
and Bank will also be required to maintain a "capital conservation buffer" in addition to its minimum risk-based 
capital requirements. The buffer will be required to consist solely of CETl, but the buffer will apply to all three 
risk-based measurements (CETl, Tier 1 and total capital). The capital conservation buffer will be phased in 
incrementally over time, beginning January 1, 2016 and becoming fully effective on January 1, 2019, and will 
ultimately consist of an additional amount of Tier 1 capital equal to 2.50% of risk-weighted assets. 
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Regulatory capital, continued: 

As of December 31, 2017, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized 
under the capital adequacy guidelines and regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized 
as well capitalized as defined in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, the Bank must maintain minimum total 
risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events 
since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank's category. Bank holding companies with 
higher levels of risk, or that are experiencing or anticipating significant growth, are expected by the Federal 
Reserve to maintain capital well above the minimums. The Company's and Bank's actual capital amounts and 
ratios are also presented in the table. 

Minimum for Minimum to be 
Actual ca~ital adeguac~ well ca~italized 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 2017 
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) 

Company $ 58,132 9.1% $ 25,422 4.0% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 57,906 9.1% 25,412 4.0% $ 31,765 5.0% 

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Company $ 58,132 10.5% $ 33,308 6.0% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 57,906 10.4% 33,293 6.0% $ 44,391 8.0% 

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Company $ 65,077 11.7% $ 44,411 8.0% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 64,848 11.7% 44,391 8.0% $ 55,488 10.0% 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Company $ 50,132 9.0% $ 24,981 4.5% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 57,906 10.4% 24,970 4.5% $ 36,068 6.5% 
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Note 17. Shareholders' Equity, Continued 

Regulatory capital, continued: 

Minimum for Minimum to be 
Actual ca~ital adeguac)l well ca~italized 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 2016 
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) 

Company $ 58,148 11.7% $ 19,908 4.0% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 57,485 11.6% 19,898 4.0% $ 24,872 5.0% 

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Company $ 58,148 13.9% $ 25,105 6.0% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 57,485 13.7% 25,090 6.0% $ 33,453 8.0% 

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Company $ 63,307 15.1% $ 33,473 8.0% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 62,643 15.0% 33,453 8.0% $ 41,817 10.0% 

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 
Company $ 50,148 12.0% $ 18,829 4.5% NA NA 
GrandSouth Bank 57,485 13.7% 18,817 4.5% $ 27,181 6.5% 

Note 18. Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The Company has not elected to value any financial instruments at fair value under the Fair Value Option of ASC 
Topic 825, but is required by other accounting standards to disclose relevant information about the fair values of 
financial instruments and certain other items. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value may reflect actual transaction prices or may reflect the 
application of valuation techniques if the transaction was between related parties, the transaction occurred under 
duress, or other circumstances where the transaction price may not be indicative of the fair value of the particular 
asset or liability. When valuation techniques are used, the inputs may be either observable or unobservable. 
Assets or liabilities may be measured at fair value on either a recurring basis or a non-recurring basis. 

A three level hierarchy is used for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation 
technique. When available, fair value is based upon quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1 inputs) or for similar assets and liabilities or upon inputs that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly (Level 2 inputs). When neither Level 1 nor Level 2 inputs are available, the 
Company may use unobservable inputs which may be significant to the fair value measurement (Level 3). The 
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement determines an item's categorization within 
the fair value hierarchy. 
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Note 18. Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments, Continued 

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, including the general classification of such instruments 
pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 

December 31, 2017 
Government sponsored enterprises (GSEs) $ 
State, county, and municipal 
Mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs 

Total s 
December 31, 2016 

Government sponsored enterprises (GSEs) $ 
State, county, and municipal 
Mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs 

Total s 

Fair value measurement at reporting date using 

Total 

5,863 
2,812 

12,765 
21.440 

6,861 
6,702 

11,980 
25,543 

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets for 
identical 

assets 
(Levell} 

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs 

(Level 2} 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3} 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ - $ 5,863 $ 
2,812 

12,765 
s - $ 21.440 s 

$ - $ 6,861 $ 
6,702 

11,980 
s - s 25,543 s 

Pricing for the Company's securities available-for-sale is obtained from an independent third-party that uses a 
process that may incorporate current prices, benchmark yields, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided 
markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, other reference items and industry and economic events that a 
market participant would be expected to use as inputs in valuing the securities. Not all of the inputs listed apply 
to each individual security at each measurement date. The independent third party assigns specific securities into 
an "asset class" for the purpose of assigning the applicable level of the fair value hierarchy used to value the 
securities. The CMO categorized as Level 3 above has been valued using a discounted cash flow analysis using 
inputs including the discount margin, default rates and prepayment speeds of the underlying collateral. 

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for financial instruments measured at fair value 
on a non-recurring basis in the Consolidated Balance Sheets including the general classification of such 
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 
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Note 18. Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments, Continued 

Fair value measurement at reporting date using 
Quoted prices 

Total 

December 31, 2017 
Loans individually reviewed for impairment $ 7,479 
Assets acquired in settlement of loans 4,923 

$ 12.402 

December 31, 2016 
Loans individually reviewed for impairment $ 10,338 
Assets acquired in settlement of loans 4,902 

$ 15,240 

in active 
markets for 

identical 
assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ - $ - $ 7,479 
4,923 

$ - $ - $ 12.402 

$ - $ - $ 10,338 
4,902 

$ - $ - $ 15,240 

Fair values of impaired loans are estimated based on discounted cash flow analyses or on recent appraisals of the 
underlying properties or other information derived from market sources. 

Assets acquired in settlement of loans are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is measured on a 
non-recurring basis and is based on independent market prices or current appraisals that are generally prepared 
using an income or market valuation approach and conducted by an independent licensed third party appraiser, 
adjusted for estimated selling costs. 

For Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2017, the 
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements were as follows: 

Significant 

Description Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs 

General Range 
of Significant 
Unobservable 
Input Values 

Loans individually reviewed for impairment Appraisal value; 
Present value of 
discounted cash flows 

Assets acquired in settlement of loans Appraisal value; 
List or contract price 
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Discounts to appraisals O - 15% 
or cash flows for 
estimated holdings and/ 
or selling costs 

Discounts to appraisals O -15% 
for estimated holding 
or selling costs 
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Note 19. Subsequent Events 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 20, 2018, the date the financial statements were 
available for distribution. 
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